# internationa nnarketing

8e

Michael R. Czinkota

**Georgetown University** 

Ilkka A. Ronkainen

**Georgetown University** 



# **Brief Contents**

Preface iv

Acknowledgments ix
About the Authors xii

# Part 1

# The International Marketing Environment

Chapter I The Global Marketing Imperative 3

Appendix A Basics of Marketing 17

Appendix B Geographical Perspectives on International Marketing 21

Chapter 2 Trade Institutions and Trade Policy 29

Chapter 3 The Cultural Environment 51
Chapter 4 The Economic Environment 83

Chapter 5 The Political and Legal Environment 125

Cases I The Catfish Dispute 156

Trick or Treat 160

Marketing Cigarettes and Tobacco 164

IKEA 171

Car Financing in China 176

Video Case I Equal Exchange Strives for Equality through FairTrade 183

# Part 2

# International Market Entry and Development

Chapter 6 Strategic Planning 187

Chapter 7 Marketing Organization, Implementation, and Control 213

Chapter 8 Research 243

Appendix A Information Sources for Marketing Issues 272
Appendix B The Structure of a Country Commercial Guide 278

Chapter 9 Market Entry and Expansion 281

Cases 2 Damar International 306

Polar-Adidas 308

Parker Pen Company 313

Exporting Chopsticks to Japan 316

Video Cases 2 Green Mountain Coffee Roasters 318

Doc Martens Makes Strides around the World 320

#### Part 3

# **Export Marketing Mix**

Chapter 10 Product Adaptation 325 Chapter I I Export Pricing 353

Chapter 12 Marketing Communication 385
Chapter I3 Distribution Management 413

Cases 3 Dr. Eris: Cosmetics from Poland 449

Imaginarium 454 Joemarin Oy 459 The Gray Ferrari 464

Video Cases 3 Global Vendor Relations at Pier I Imports 467

Goya Helps Latinos Maintain Mealtime Traditions 469

# Part 4

# The Global Marketing Mix

Chapter 14 Global Product Management and Branding 473

Chapter 15 Global Services 501

Chapter 16 Global Logistics and Materials Management 523

Chapter 17 Global Pricing 549

Chapter 18 Global Promotional Strategies 575

Appendix C Careers in International Marketing 607

Cases 4 International Marketing and the NBA 615

Oil for Food 618

Should Dubai Take Over U.S. Ports? 622

Blood Free Diamonds 629

Novia Scotia 632

The F-18 Hornet Offset 636

Video Cases 4 Whirlpool and the Global Appliance Industry 642

ESPN's Worldwide Reach 645

Glossary G-Index I-1

# Contents

Preface iv Acknowledgments ix About the Authors xii

# Part 1

# The International Marketing Environment

# Chapter I The Global Marketing Imperative 3

The International Marketplace I.I 3

What International Marketing Is 4

The Importance of World Trade 5

Global Linkages 6

The International Marketplace 12 7

Domestic Policy Repercuss/ons 8

Opportunities and Challenges in International Marketing 10

The International Marketplace 13 II

The Goals of This Book II

Summary 14

Key Terms 15

Questions & Discussion 15

Internet Excercises 15

Recommended Readings 15

Notes 15

#### Appendix A: Basics of Marketing 17

Strategic Marketing 18

Target Market Selection 18

Marketing Management 19

The Marketing Process 19

Key Terms 20

Notes 20

# Appendix B: Geographical Perspectives on International Marketing 21

Location 21

Place 22

Natural Features 22

Human Features 23

Interaction 23

Movement 25

Region 26

Key Terms 21

# Chapter 2 Trade Institutions and Trade Policy 29

The International Marketplace 2.1 29

The Historical Dimension 30

Global Division 31

Transnational Institutions Affecting World Trade 32

World Trade Organization (WTO) (http://lvsww.wto.org) 32

Contents [x>

The International Marketplace 2.2 34 International Monetary Fund (IMF) (http://www.jmf.org) 34 World Bank (http://www.worldbank.org) 35 Regional Institutions 36 Trade Positions Compared 37 A Diagnosis of the US.Trade Position 37 The Impact of Trade and Investment 39 The Effect of Trade 39 The Effect of International Investment 40 Policy Responses to Trade Problems 41 Restrictions of Imports 41 Export Promotion Efforts 45 A Strategic Outlook for Trade and Investment Policies 46 A U.S. Perspective 46 An International Perspective 41 The International Marketplace 2.3 48 Summary 49 Key Terms 49 Questions for Discussion 49 Internet Exercises 49 Recommended Readings 50

# Chapter 3 The Cultural Environment 51

The International Marketplace 3.1 51 Culture Defined 54

The International Marketplace 3.2 56

The Elements of Culture 56

Notes 50

Language 57

Nonverbal Language 59

Religion 59

Values and Attitudes 62

Manners and Customs 63

Material Elements 65

The International Marketplace 3.3 66

Aesthetics 67

Education 67

Social Institutions 68

Sources of Cultural Knowledge 69

Cultural Analysis 71

The Training Challenge 75

The International Marketplace 3.4 77

Making Culture Work for Marketing Success 78

Summary 79

Key Terms 79

Questions for Discussion 80

Internet Excercises 80

Recommended Readings 80

Notes 81

# Chapter 4 The Economic Environment 83

The International Marketplace 4.1 83

Market Characteristics 88

Population 88

Infrastructure 96

Chapter 5

```
The International Marketplace 4.2 99
Impact of the Economic Environment on Social Development 100
Regional Economic Integration 101
        Levels of Economic Integration 101
The International Marketplace 4.3 109
        Other Economic Alliances 111
        Economic Integration and the International Marketer 113
Emerging Markets I 16
        Adjust Entry Strategy //7
        Manage Affordability
        Invest in Distribution 118
Developing Markets | 19
        Research 119
        Creating Buying Power 119
         Tailoring Local Solutions 12 0
        Improving Access / 20
        Shaping Aspirations 120
The International Marketplace 4.4 121
        Summary 121
        Key Terms 122
         Questions for Discussion 122
        Internet Exercises 122
        Recommended Readings 123
        Notes 123
The Political and Legal Environment 125
The International Marketplace 5.1
                                  125
Home Country Political and Legal Environment 127
        Embargoes and Sanctions 127
         Export Controls 129
        A New Environment for Export Controls 130
        Import Controls 131
        Regulation of International Business Behavior 132
Host Country Political and Legal Environment 133
        Political Action and Risk 133
The International Marketplace 5.2 135
        Legal Differences and Restraints 138
The International Marketplace 5.3 | 139
         Influencing Politics and Laws 140
The International Environment 142
         International Politics 142
         International Law 143
         International Terrorism and Marketing
Ethical Issues 147
         Corporate Governance and Responsibility 147
The International Marketplace 5.4 149
        Intellectual Property 149
         Bribery and Corruption 150
         Summary 153
         Key Terms 153
         Questions & Discussion /53
         Internet Exercises 154
```

Recommended Readings 154 Notes 154

# Cases I The Catfish Dispute 156

The U.S. Catfish Industry 156
The Issue 156
Congressional Reaction:The Labeling Dispute 157
When Is a Catfish a Catfish? 157
Department of Commerce and International Trade Commission 157
The Issue and Free Trade 158
Questions for Discussion 158
Notes 158

# "Trick-or-Treat?" Costume Market in Horror as Halloween Approaches 160

Fighting Imports 160 Turning the Tide 161

# Marketing Cigarettes and Tobacco 164

The Importance of Tobacco for the U.S. Economy 164
The Importance of Tobacco Exports 164
US.Trade Policy 166
Tobacco Marketing in the United States and the Developing World 167
Government Support of the Tobacco Industry 168
Conflicting Objectives 168
Questions for Discussion 169
Sources 169

#### **IKEA 171**

The IKEA Concept 171
IKEA in the Competitive Environment 173
IKEA in the United States 174
Questions for Discussion 175

#### Car Financing in China 176

China and the WTO 176
Changes in the Chinese Car Market 179
Current Market Structure for Car Financing in China 180
Expected Market Changes in Car Financing in China 180
Options for Market Entry and Development 181
GMACs Competitive Position 181
Implications for Global Operations 182
Questions for Discussion 182

# Video Equal Exchange Strives for Equality through FairTrade 183 Case I

Questions for Discussion 184

# Part 2

# International Market Entry and Development

# Chapter 6 Strategic Planning 187

The International Marketplace 6.1 187

Global Marketing 189

Globalization Drivers 190

The International Marketplace 6.2 192

The Strategic Planning Process 194

Market and Competitive Analysis 195

Formulating Global Marketing Strategy / 96

The International Marketplace 6.3 201

Global Marketing Program Development 202

Competitive Moves 203

Implementing Global Marketing 204

The International Marketplace 6.4 206

The Local Company in the Global Environment 208

Summary 209

Key Terms 210

Questions for Discussion 210

Internet Exercises 210

Recommended Readings 210

Notes 211

# Chapter 7 Marketing Organization, Implementation, and Control 213

The International Marketplace 7.1 213

Organizational Structure 215

Organizational Designs 2 15

Evolution of Organizational Structures 224

The International Marketplace 7.2 225

Implementation 225

Locus of Decision Making 226

Factors Affecting Structure and Decision Making 221

The Networked Global Organization 228

Promoting Internal Cooperation 230

The International Marketplace 7.3 232

The Role of Country Organizations 233

Control 234

Types of Controls 235

The International Marketplace 7.4 235

Exercising Control 238

Summary 240

KevTerms 240

Questions for Discussion 240

Internet Exercises 241

Recommended Readings 24!

Notes 241

# Chapter 8 Research 243

The International Marketplace 8.1 243

Defining the Issue 244

International and Domestic Research 244

New Parameters 245

New Environments 245

Number of Factors Involved 245

Broader Definition of Competition 245

Recognizing the Need for Research 245

The Benefits of Research 246

Determining Research Objectives 247

Going/International: Importing 248

Market Expansion 249

Determining Secondary Information Requirements 249

Sources of Data 249

The International Marketplace 8.2 250

Evaluating Data 252

Analyzing and Interpreting Secondary Data 252

The Primary Research Process 253

Determining information Requirements 254

Industrial versus Consumer Research 254

Determining Research Administration 254

Determining the Research Technique 258

The International Marketplace 8.3 260

Designing the Survey Questionnaire 261

The International Marketplace 8.4 264

Developing the Sampling Plan 264

Data Collection 265

Analyzing and Interpreting Primary Data 265

Presenting Research Results 265

Foltow-Up and Review 265

Research on the Web 266

The International Information System 266

Environmental Scanning 267

Delphi Studies 268

Scenario Building 269

Summary 269

Key Terms 270

Questions for Discussion 2 70

Internet Excercises 2 70

Recommended Readings 2 70

Notes 271

#### Appendix A: Information Sources for Marketing Issues 272

European Union 272

United Nations 212

U.S.Government273

Selected Organizations 2 73

Indexes to Literature 2 74

Directories 275

Periodic Reports, Newspapers, Magazines 2 75

Selected Trade Databases 2 76

#### Appendix B: The Structure of a Country Commercial Guide 278

The U.S. Commercial Service 278

Guide for Doing Business in Austria 278

#### Chapter 9 Market Entry and Expansion 281

The International Marketplace 9.1 281

Stimuli to Internationalize 283

Proactive Stimuli 283

Reactive Stimuli 284

Change Agents 285

Internal Change Agents 285

External Change Agents and Intermediaries 286

Corporate Export Stages 287

Intermediaries 288

Export Management Companies 288

Trading Companies 289

E-Commerce 289

Licensing and Franchising 290

Licensing 291

The International Marketplace 9.2 291

Franchising 293

Foreign Direct Investment 294

Major Foreign Investors 295

Reasons for Foreign Direct Investment 295

The International Marketplace 9.3 297

A Perspective on Foreign Direct Investors 298

Types of Ownership 300

Summary 303

Key Terms 303

Questions for Discussion 303

Internet Exercises 304

Recommended Readings 304

Notes 304

# Cases 2 Damar International 306

Questions for Discussion 307

## Polar-Adidas 308

Introduction 308

About Partnership Agreements 308

The Growth of Polar Electro Oy 3 10

Polar Marketing 311

Other Partnerships 312

Growth Prospects of Polar 312

Questions for Discussion 312

#### Parker Pen Company 313

Globalization 313

Globalization at Parker Pen Company 3 13

Epilogue 315

Cases 1

Questions for Discussion 315

#### Exporting Chopsticks to Japan 316

Company Background 316

Learning about the Chopstick Market 316

The Founding of Lakewood Forest Products 316

The Production and Sale of Chopsticks 317

Questions for Discussion 317

# Video Green Mountain Coffee Roasters 318

Questions for Critical Thinking 319

#### Doc Martens Makes Strides around the World 320

Questions for Critical Thinking 321

# Part 3

# **Export Marketing Mix**

# Chapter 10 Product Adaptation 325

The International Marketplace 10.1 325

ProductVariables 327

Standardization versus Adaptation 328

Factors Affecting Adaptation 330

The Market Environment 331

Government Regulations 331

Nontariff Barriers 332

Customer Characteristics, Expectations, and Preferences 333

The International Marketplace 10.2 334

Economic Development 336

Competitive Offerings 33 7

Climate and Geography 337

Product Characteristics 338

Product Constituents and Content 338

Branding 338

Packaging 339

The International Marketplace 10.3 340

Appearance 342

Method of Operation or Usage 342

Quality 343

Service 343

Country-of-Origin Effects 344

Company Considerations 344

Product Counterfeiting 345

The International Marketplace 10.4 346

Summary 349

Key Terms 349

Questions for Discussion 349

Internet Exercises 349

Recommended Readings 349

Notes 350

# Chapter 11 Export Pricing 353

The International Marketplace I I.I 353

Price Dynamics 354

The Setting of Export Prices 356

Export Pricing Strategy 357

Export-Related Costs 359

Terms of Sale 361

Terms of Payment 363

The International Marketplace I 12 364

Getting Paid for Exports 369

The International Marketplace I 13 372

Managing Foreign Exchange Risk 372

Sources of Export Financing 376

Commercial Banks 376

Forfeiting and Factoring 311

Official Trade Finance 377

The International Marketplace I 1.4 379

Price Negotiations 380

Leasing 380

Dumping 381

Summary 382

Key Terms 382

Questions for Discussion 383

Internet Exercises 383

Recommended Readings 383

Notes 383

# Chapter 12 Marketing Communication 385

The International Marketplace 12.1 385

The Marketing Communications Process 387

International Negotiations 388

Stages of the Negotiation Process 389

How to Negotiate in Other Countries 390

Marketing Communications Strategy 392

Communications Tools 396

Business/Trade Journals and Directories 396

Direct Marketing 398

Internet 399

The International Marketplace 12.2 400

Trade Shows and Missions 402

The International Marketplace 12.3 404

Personal Selling 405

The International Marketplace 12.4 407

Summary 408

Key Terms 409

Questions for Discussion 409

Internet Exercises 409

Recommended Readings 409

Notes 410

#### Chapter 13 Distribution Management 413

The International Marketplace 13.1 413

Channel Structure 415

Channel Design 416

Customer Characteristics 416

Culture 417

The International Marketplace 13.2 418

Competition 419

Company Objectives 420

Character 421

Capital 422

Cost 422

Coverage 423

Control 424

Continuity 424

Communication 425

Selection of Intermediaries 425

Types of Intermediaries 425

Sources for Finding Intermediaries 426

Screening Intermediaries 430

The Distributor Agreement 432

Channel Management 434

Factors in Channel Management 435

Gray Markets 436

The International Marketplace 13.3 438

Termination of the Channel Relationship 441

E-Commerce 442

The International Marketplace 13.4 444

Summary 445

Key Terms 446

Questions for Discussion 446

Internet Exercises 446

Recommended Readings 446

Notes 446

## Cases 3 Dr. Eris: Cosmetics from Poland 449

The Polish Cosmetics Market 449
The Company 451

Brand Image 452

Diversification 452

Marketing Communications 453

Internationalization 453

Questions for Discussion 453

Notes 453

# Imaginarium 454

Background 454
Imaginarium.A New Business Concept 454
Fine-tuning the New Business Concept 455
Opening the Next Four Stores 455
Opening of the First Franchised Stores 455
Opening the First Stores Abroad 456
The Product Department 456
The Expansion and Projects Department 456
Operations and Logistics 456
Imaginarium's Marketing Strategy 457
Club Imaginarium 457
Questions for Discussion 458
Notes 458

## Joemarin Oy 459

Questions for Discussion 463

# The Gray Ferrari 464

The Standards 464
Ferrari's Response 464
The Reaction 465
Government in the Middle 465
A Side Note 466
The Decision 466
Questions for Discussion 466

# Video Global Vendor Relations at Pier I Imports 467 Cases 3

# Goya Helps Latinos Maintain Mealtime Traditions 469

Questions for Discussion 470

Questions for Discussion 468

# Part 4

# The Global Marketing Mix

# Chapter 14 Global Product Management and Branding 473

The International Marketplace 14.1 473

Global Product Development 475

The Product Development Process 476

The Location of R&D Activities 479

The International Marketplace 14.2 480

The Organization of Global Product Development 481

The International Marketplace 14.3 482

The Testing of New Product Concepts 483

The Global Product Launch 484

Management of the Product and Brand Portfolio 485

Analyzing the Product Portfolio 485

Disadvantages of the Product Portfolio Approach 488

Managing the Brand Portfolio 489

Brand Strategy Decisions 491

The International Marketplace 14.4 493

Private Brand Policies 495

Summary 497

Key Terms 497

Questions for Discussion 497

Internet Exercises 497

Recommended Readings 498

Notes 498

# Chapter 15 Global Services 501

The International Marketplace 15.1 501

Differences between Services and Goods 502

Linkage between Services and Goods 504

Stand-Alone Services 505

The Role of Services in the U.S. Economy 508

The Role of International Services in the World Economy 509

Global Transformation of Services 510

International Trade Problems in Services 512

Data Collection Problems 512

Regulations and Service Trade Negotiations 512

Corporations and Involvement in International Services Marketing 513

Services and E-Commerce 5 J 3

Services and Academia 514

Typical International Services 514

Starting to Market Services Internationally 516

The International Marketplace 15.2 517

Strategic /mplicat/ons of International Services Marketing SI8

The International Marketplace 15.3 519

Summary 520

KeyTerms 521

Questions for Discussion 521

Internet Exercises 521

Recommended Readings 521

Notes 522

# Chapter 16 Global Logistics and Materials Management 523

The International Marketplace 16.1 523 A Definition of International Logistics 524 Supply Chain Management 525

The Impact of International Logistics 526

The New Dimensions of International Logistics 527

International Transportation Issues 527

Transportation Infrastructure 52 7

The International Marketplace 16.2 528

Availability of Modes 528

Choice of Transport Modes 531

The International Shipment 533

Documentation 534

Assistance with International Shipments 535

International Inventory Issues 535

Order Cycle Time 535

Customer Service Levels 536

Inventory as a StrategicTool 536

International Storage Issues 537

Storage Facilities 537

Outsourcing 537

The International Marketplace 16.3 538

Foreign Trade Zones 539

International Packaging Issues 539

Management of International Logistics 541

Centralized Logistics Management 541

Decentralized Logistics Management 541

Contract Logistics 542

The Supply Chain and the Internet 542

Logistics and Security 543

The International Marketplace 16.4 544

Recycling and Reverse Logistics 545

Summary 546

Key Terms 547

Questions for Discussion 547

Internet Exercises 547

Recommended Readings 547

Notes 547

# Chapter 17 Global Pricing 549

The International Marketplace 17.1 549

Transfer Pricing 550

Use of Transfer Prices to Achieve Corporate Objectives 552

Transfer Pricing Challenges 553

Pricing within Individual Markets 555

Corporate Objectives 555

Costs 551

Demand and Market Factors 558

Market Structure and Competition 559

Environmental Constraints 559

Dealing with Financial Crises 560

Causes of the Crises 560

Effects of the Crises 561

Consumer and Marketer Responses 561

The International Marketplace 17.2 563

Pricing Coordination 563

The Euro and Marketing Strategy 564

The International Marketplace 17.3 565

Countertrade 566

The International Marketplace 17.4 567

Why Countertrade? 561

Types of Countertrade 568

Preparing for Countertrade 570

Summary 572

Key Terms 572

Questions for Discussion 5 72

Internet Exercises 572

Recommended Reading 573

Notes 573

# Chapter 18 Global Promotional Strategies 575

The International Marketplace 18.1 575

Planning Promotional Campaigns 577

The Target Audience 577

Campaign Objectives 579

The Budget 579

Media Strategy 580

Audience Characteristics 584

Global Media 584

The International Marketplace 18.2 585

The Promotional Message 587

The International Marketplace 18.3 590

The Campaign Approach 591

Measurement of Advertising Effectiveness 594

Other Promotional Elements 596

Personai Selling 596

Sales Promotion 591

Public Relations 599

Sponsorship Marketing 602

The International Marketplace 18.4 603

Summary 604

Key Terms 604

Questions for Discussion 604

Internet Exercises 604

Recommended Readings 604

Notes 605

#### Appendix: Careers in International Marketing 607

FurtherTraining 607

Employment with a Large Firm 607

Employment with a Small or Medium-Sized Firm 610

Opportunities for Women in Global Firms 612

Self-Employment 612

Recommended Readings 614

Notes 614

# Cases 4 International Marketing and the NBA 615

A New Ming Dynasty? 615

The NBA Goes Global 615

Global Expansion in China 615

Licensing Benefits 616

"The Golden Bridge" 616

Questions for Discussion 616

Sources 616

#### Oil for Food 618

Background 618
US-Iraqi Relationship 618
Economic Sanctions 618
Improving Product Flow 618
The Issue 619
Selling the Oil 619
Buying the Goods 620
The Banking Issue 621
The Investigation 621
Questions for Discussion 621
Sources 621

# Should Dubai Take Over U.S. Ports? 622

DP World, a Dubai Company 622 Investment in U.S. Ports 623 Ports and Container Operations 624 Security 624 Opposition Gathers Momentum 625 Protectionism 625 Impact on Pending Issues 626 Future Repercussions 626 Notes 627

#### Blood Free Diamonds 629

The Diamond Production Process: From Mine to Market 629
The Not So Dazzling Side of the Diamond Trade 629
The Kimberley Process 630
Critics Speak Out 630
New Technologies Offer Solutions 630
Questions for Discussion 631
Sources 631

#### Nova Scotia 632

The U.S. Market for Canadian Travel Services 632
A Benefit-Match ing Model 632
The Case of Nova Scotia 632
Examples of Successful Positioning 634
Positioning Nova Scotia 635
Questions for Discussion 635
Notes 635

#### The F-18 Hornet Offset 636

Offsets 636

McDonnell's Deal with the Finnish Air Force 637

The Finnish Government Position 638

Selecting the Fighter 638

Working Out the Offsets 639

The F-18 Team's Position 640

Competing for the Deal 640

Satisfying the Offset Obligation 640

Results 641 Questions for Discussion 641 Recommended Readings 641

# Video Cases 4

# Whirlpool and the Global Appliance Industry 642

Whirlpool and Its Options 642
Global Success Factors 643
China and Asia 643
United States 644
Europe 644
Latin America 644
Questions for Discussion 644

## ESPN's Worldwide Reach 645

Questions for Discussion 646

Glossary G-Index I-1